
Board of Trustees
Mount Prospect Public Library

10 S. Emerson Street, Mount Prospect, IL 60056 

*All topics on the agenda are potential action items
5/21/2020 Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

Regular Board Meeting 
May 21, 2020 7:00 p.m. 

Remotely via Electronic Means 
Agenda* 

The meeting of the Board of Library Trustees will be held without a quorum of Library Trustees 
physically present. The Library Trustees will conduct the Board meeting with Library Trustees 
attending remotely via electronic means. This method of conducting the Board meeting is 
authorized by Executive Order of the Governor (COVID-19 Executive Order No. 5, March 16, 
2020). To submit public comment, send an email noting that you are submitting public 
comment to sreynders@mppl.org at any time before or during the meeting. All comments 
noted as public comment and received prior to the Public Comment agenda item will be read 
aloud during the meeting. 

Place:   Remotely via Electronic Means 
Zoom Meeting 
Public Access Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82297257148  
Meeting ID: 822 9725 7148 
Password: 497377 
Dial by Phone: +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kNaFYsa0J  

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Consent Agenda
a. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting April 16, 2020
b. Approve Minutes of Special Board Meeting April 30, 2020
c. April 2020 Bills

4. Officer Elections

5. COVID-19 Emergency Plan Update and Re-Opening Plans

6. Clearing Patron Fines

1



Board of Trustees
Mount Prospect Public Library

10 S. Emerson Street, Mount Prospect, IL 60056 

*All topics on the agenda are potential action items 
5/21/2020 Regular Board Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 2 

 

7. Director and Trustee Reports 
 

8. Schedule Next Board Meeting 
a. Thursday May 28, 2020 7:00 p.m.  no meeting scheduled 
b. Thursday June 4, 2020 7:00 p.m.  no meeting scheduled 
c. Thursday June 11, 2020 7:00 p.m.  Propose COW  Bylaws revision? 
d. Thursday June 18, 2020 7:00 p.m.  no meeting scheduled 
e. Thursday June 25, 2020 7:00 p.m.  Regular Board Meeting 

 
9. Public Comment 

a. To submit public comment, send an email noting that you are submitting public 
comment to sreynders@mppl.org at any time before or during the meeting. All 
comments noted as public comment and received prior to the Public Comment 
agenda item will be read aloud during the meeting. 
 

10. Adjournment 

2



Mount Prospect Public Library 

Library Director Report  Page 1 of 6 

Library Director Report
May 21, 2020 

 
1. Officer Elections. This is agenda item number 4. The Board usually elects new officers each May, which 

would be at this 5/21 meeting. Our bylaws read,  
 
“All officers of the Board of Library Trustees shall hold such office for a term of one (1) year or 
until their successors are elected. An officer may not ordinarily be elected to succeed 
himself/herself more than once, but officers may be elected to a third successive term under 
special circumstances. Five affirmative votes of board members are required to extend the 
tenure of an officer to a third successive term.” 

 
Because of the special circumstances we find ourselves in, I propose that the Board consider deferring 
new officer elections this year or elect the same officers as we figure out our “new normal.” I am 
recommending this to provide officer continuity during the pandemic, as well as minimize in-person 
administrative tasks such as changing names on our bank and other accounts.  
 
Additionally, right before the world changed, we had prepared to bring revision recommendations to 
our Bylaws, which included an officer change. We can plan to review the proposed Bylaws revisions in 
June if we choose to. 
 

 To elect the same officers, “I move to nominate this slate of officers: President, Sylvia Haas; Vice 
President, Michael Duebner; Treasurer/Secretary, Brian Gilligan; Assistant Treasurer, Terri Gens.” 

 
 To defer the elections, “I move to defer officer elections until the revised Bylaws are approved.” 

 
2. Reopen Illinois staged plan. This is agenda item number 5. On May 5, 2020, Governor Pritzker published 

a 5-phase plan to “Restore Illinois.” We have tied its opening stages to the state’s phases. The Library 
will prepare to move into a new stage when our region has been moved to a new phase. If the state 
moves backwards, the Library can also move back as needed. 

As of the writing of this report (5/18/20), the Library is in MPPL Stage 2, and plans to move into MPPL 
Stage 3 on or around June 1. We will stay in MPPL Stage 3 for at least two weeks before considering 
moving to MPPL Stage 4 (but only if our region moves to IL Phase 3). 
 

Mount Prospect Library Stages Illinois Reopening Phases MPPL Effective 
Date 

MPPL Stage 1 - Entirely closed IL Phase 1 - Rapid Spread March 15

MPPL Stage 2 - Staff only IL Phase 2 - Flattening May 1 

MPPL Stage 3 - Pickup/Delivery IL Phase 2 - Flattening June 1

MPPL Stage 4 - Limited Public IL Phase 3 – Recovery ? 

MPPL Stage 5 - Moderate Public IL Phase 4 - Revitalization ? 

MPPL Stage 6 - New Normal IL Phase 5 - Illinois Restored ? 

3



Mount Prospect Public Library 

Library Director Report  Page 2 of 6 

Staff have spent a significant amount of time preparing the facilities for re-opening. We have implemented the 
following safety protocols to do our best to keep staff and patrons safe: 

 Posted signs in the library to keep patrons and staff informed about symptoms of the pandemic and to 
stay at home if experiencing any symptoms.   

 Limited public access by instituting a phased plan that is tied to the Illinois Reopening Plan. The Library’s 
plan limits the number of patrons in the facility to ensure appropriate distancing, along with visual 
markers on floors for six-foot distancing.  

 Posted signs on doors and in the facility alerting visitors to restrictions on entry and movement in and 
around the facility as well as any applicable guidelines and expectations.  

 Pickup and delivery services and expanded virtual services have been implemented to minimize face-to-
face contact.  

 Provided staff with an Employee Rights and Responsibilities document that outlines requirements for 
reporting symptoms, exposure, or positive test.   

 Requires all staff to self-monitor their health before and during each shift using the following screening 
questions. The Library will make a no-touch thermometer available for employees to use while working. 
If the answer is yes to any of these questions, the Response Plan will be immediately implemented.  

o Since your last day of work, or last visit to the library, have you had any of these symptoms?  
 Cough  
 Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing  
 Fever (100.4 degrees or higher)  
 Chills  
 Repeated shaking with chills  

 Muscle pain  
 Headache  
 Sore throat  
 New loss of taste or smell  

 Personal Protective Equipment   
o Face coverings are required to be worn in public areas, in shared workroom spaces, when near 

others, and when a safe distance cannot be maintained.  
o The Library will supply cloth face coverings to any employee who requests one. Employee-

supplied masks may be worn if preferred. Library employees are responsible for washing and 
maintaining their masks.  

o While gloves do not eliminate the need for proper handwashing, they are available to staff, and 
are encouraged to be used when handling deliveries and materials, especially before 
quarantining, working Parking Lot Pickup or Home Delivery, cleaning workspaces  

o Face shields are available for any staff to wear, especially in situations where a 6-foot distance is 
difficult to maintain, either between co-workers or with the public.  

 
Beginning Monday 5/18, staff have slowly begun to return to work on-site at the library. We have begun to bring 
furloughed staff back according to business need and expect to see furloughed staff come back through the 
middle of June. The biggest group of staff returning is on 5/18, consisting primarily of Circulation and CBS staff. 
The Circulation Department is working to process returned books and prepare for pickup and delivery services, 
and the CBS Department is processing new materials to add to our collection. 

For the next several weeks staff will be working a combination of on-site and remotely to reduce the number of 
staff in the buildings at one time. We are also planning for staggered shifts as possible, by department and/or 
workspace. 

In preparation for all staff returning to work on-site, we have created multiple documents to provide 
information and guidance to all employees. We are waiting for comment from our lawyer on a couple of these 
documents before having staff acknowledge them (marked with *). 

4



Mount Prospect Public Library 

Library Director Report  Page 3 of 6 

 Return to Work Agreement. For furloughed employees, it provides information about their un-furlough 
date, their first day back on-site, employment information, safety protocol, and work expectations. 

 *Employee Rights and Responsibilities. For all employees, it outlines the requirement for employees to 
self-monitor their health and report symptoms, what safety protocols and protective equipment 
employees are required to comply with. It also contains information about employee rights under the 
Families First Coronavirus Response Act. 

 *Safety Protocol and Response Plan. For all employees, it details the Library’s response if an employee 
develops symptoms, has a positive test, or has been in contact with know or suspected infected 
individuals.  

 Safety Training. We created a PowerPoint presentation with embedded videos that trains staff on MPPL 
safety protocols as well as general guidance on distancing and wearing protective equipment. We also 
created a self-guided tour of the library so that staff can experience and understand the directional 
traffic patterns in the library. 
 

3. Virtual Public Services. This is also agenda item number 5. Staff continue to provide virtual services 
remotely. Since our last Board meeting, we have implemented a live Google Voice phone number for 
patrons to call and get live telephone support (our existing phone system is not very remote-friendly). Below 
are select statistics from April 2020. I’ve included some patron impact statements at the end of this report. 

a. Patron interactions on chat went way up in April. We had 139 web chats in April, a 70% increase 
over March. We also had 11 text messages, up from 2 in March. 

b. Overall usage of databases is up by 45% compared to February and 27% compared to March. Some 
items of note: 

i. Creativebug – 18 hours of viewed videos, up from average of 4. 
ii. Driving Test Prep – 23 visits, up from average of 5 

iii. Ebsco – Masterfile – 98 searches, up from average of 30 
iv. Gale – National Geographic Virtual Library – 257 page views, up from average of 14 
v. Morningstar – 1,206 searches, up from average of 500 

vi. Niche Academy – 709 videos viewed, up from average of 400 
vii. PressReader - 9,163 articles viewed, up from average of 4,500 

viii. ProQuest – Ancestry Library Edition – 3,734 searches, up from average of 900 
ix. ReferenceUSA – 91 searches, down from average of 200 

c. We had a total of 30 programs in April: 29 on YouTube, 1 on Zoom, with a total of 2,168 views. 
i. Adult programs: 5 programs with 290 views 

ii. Youth programs: 22 programs with 1746 views 
iii. South programs: 3 programs with 132 views 

 
4. Clearing Patron Fines. This is agenda item number 6. At our last Board meeting we talked briefly about 

“removing barriers to service” by contemplating going Fines Free. As a precursor to that discussion, staff 
recommend that we wipe existing fines for late materials from patron accounts.  

a. Fines are a barrier to service. While we were closed, we modified the system so that everyone 
could access virtual resources regardless of fines. Now that we are close to circulating physical 
materials again, we’d like to do the same. We are already fielding questions from patrons who are 
worried that they won’t be able to use pick up and delivery services because of fines. 

5



Mount Prospect Public Library 

Library Director Report  Page 4 of 6 

b. It’s a good will gesture. At a time when the Library has been closed for an extended period, and 
during a time of stress and uncertainty, this is a feel-good action we can take to welcome our 
community back. 

c. We’re not going to be charging new fines in the near future. While we are still in a limited service 
model and quarantining materials before checking them in, we will not be able to charge new fines.  

d. No one wants to touch money. Using cash is high-touch, and we are trying to reduce face-to-face 
interactions and high-touch situations. 

e. Loss of income. We have been seeing fine and fee income decrease over the past several years and 
expect to see a significant drop this year due to auto-renewals. It’s hard to analyze the financial 
impact because fines (for lost items) and fees (for late items) are coded to the same line and cannot 
be broken out. 

f. By the numbers. There are 10,444 Mount Prospect residents with fines. Out of the 10,444 cards 
with fines, 5,389 are expired. The non-expired card fines total about $32,000 ($109,000 including 
expired cards). We typically recover about 20-25% of the fines, so the total impact in lost revenue 
for active cards would be around $6,500 ($20,000 including expired cards).  Some of the reasons 
that we recover only a portion of fines are:  

i. Fine waivers based on staff discretion and the individual situation 
ii. Patron only pays enough of the fines so they can resume using their card 

iii. Patron with fines starts using a family member’s card 
iv. Patron with fines stops using the library and lets their card expire 

 
 To approve clearing fines, “I move to clear late fines from Mount Prospect resident cardholder 

accounts effective immediately.” 
 

  
  

2,272 
5,427 

2,345 
303 97 $938 

$22,378 

$50,930 

$20,598 

$14,224 

under $1 $1-$10 $10-$50 $50-$100 over $100

MP Resident Fines

Number of People Amount

6



Mount Prospect Public Library 

Library Director Report  Page 5 of 6 

5. Patron Impact Statements
 “A regular Senior patron called and asked questions about uninstalling programs, and then talked 

about the quarantine, before returning to a wide variety of simple-to-answer IT questions. This 
phone call lasted over a half an hour. I think she was happy for the opportunity to speak with 
someone here and I was happy talking to her. She hopes we're all well and hopes to see us soon. 
This made my day because I felt useful and also that I'd done a good thing for someone.” 

 “I had 2 Google Voice interactions with a patron trying to access two specific movies available on 
Kanopy. She was really happy that she could talk to a live person and was grateful for the help 
setting up the app on her device.” 

 “One of our Homebound patrons is finally trying out Hoopla for the first time! I was working with 
her caretaker to help her set it up on their tablet. The caretaker was so excited for the patron and 
shared how happy she was going to be with all of the book and movie options. I’m especially happy 
because this patron needs Large Type, so it really expands her access to books both now and long-
term!” 

 “For the Mother's Day Tea Party program, a patron asked if her daughter's grandmother, who lives 
in another state, could register and attend since they couldn't be together for Mother's Day. Of 
course, I said YES, and the grandmother came. It made me so happy to be able to facilitate them 
having a good time and seeing each other having fun and connecting in that virtual space.” 

 “It felt very joyful to witness regular families greeting Maria Garstecki immediately on entering the 
Zoom program. One child even shouted, "I missed you the most!"  

 “I have completed three one-on-one storytimes with several more coming up on the next two 
weeks, and each one was very enjoyable for me and the family---universally, the kid/kids were 
clearly happy to interact with someone "new."  

 “I had a Zoom meeting with a 2nd grade classroom today that I visited during the school year. As 
part of my visits I always promote what's available for them at MPPL and I mentioned our STEAM 
program next week. Immediately afterward the teacher asked me to email her the specifics and 
within an hour 3 of her kids registered for it!” 

 I spent 40 minutes on Google Voice with a patron, first getting Libby installed on his device and then 
working to get his wife's Apple ID reset.  They were both very appreciative of this assistance.” 

 

7



Mount Prospect Public Library 

Library Director Report  Page 6 of 6 

8



39

15
19

40

26
26

34

11

25

55

15
17

15

38

11
19

28
15

6
512

19

513
15

36
29

7
214

7
713

7
9

725
13

16

30
18

19
27

918
15

23
22

5
417

9911
2 3814

2 38
42

82

32
30

84
82

8611
7 50

02040608010
0

12
0

14
0

16
0

H
ol

d 
Re

qu
es

ts

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 p
ic

ku
p 

in
fo

 
on

lin
e;

 a
ls

o 
sa

id
 

yo
u 

ca
n 

pl
ac

e 
ho

ld
s n

ow
 

9



Board of Trustees 
Mount Prospect Public Library 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/16/2020  Page 1 of 2 

Regular Board Meeting 
April 16, 2020 7:00 p.m. 

Minutes 
 
The meeting of the Board of Library Trustees was held without a quorum of Library Trustees 
physically present. The Library Trustees conducted the Board meeting with Library Trustees 
attending remotely via electronic means. This method of conducting the Board meeting was 
authorized by Executive Order of the Governor (COVID-19 Executive Order No. 5, March 16, 2020). 
Information and instructions on how to participate in the meeting and submit public comments was 
published on the meeting notice, the meeting agenda, and on the Library’s public website. 
 

1. Call to Order 
Notice of the time of the meeting, agenda, and instructions on how to participate and 
provide public comment, having been posted on the library’s website forty-eight hours prior 
to the meeting as required by law, the meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Sylvia 
Haas, President. 

2. Roll Call 
Present: Marie Bass, Michael Duebner, Sylvia Fulk, Terri Gens, Brian Gilligan, Sylvia 
Haas 
Absent:  None 
Staff Present: Su Reynders 
Visitors: There were approximately 50 visitors and staff on the electronic meeting. 
 

3. Consent Agenda 
a. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting February 20, 2020  
b. Approve Minutes of Committee of the Whole Meeting March 5, 2020  
c. Approve Minutes of Special Board Meeting March 26, 2020  
d. Approve Minutes of Special Board Meeting April 2, 2020  
e. Treasurer’s Report and Approval of March 2020 Bills 

 
Motion was made by Trustee Duebner and seconded by Trustee Fulk to approve the Consent 
Agenda as submitted. Roll Call Vote: AYES: Bass, Duebner, Fulk, Gens, Gilligan, Haas. NAYS: 
None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None. Motion carried. 
 

4. Trustee Vacancy Update 
Trustees acknowledged that there is still a vacancy on the Board and plans to interview 
candidates and appoint a replacement were put on hiatus due to the pandemic. After the 
Library and surrounding community are functioning more normally, the process will 
continue from where it was left. 
 

5. COVID-19 Emergency Plan 
Director Reynders gave an overview of the staff furlough process, and reviewed the virtual 
and back office services that the Library continues to provide during the emergency closure.  
 
Trustee Duebner verified that the Library will pay the furloughed employee’s share of 
medical health benefits during the furlough. 
 
Trustees asked for clarification on several issues, including investing in electronic resources, 
the wait time for electronic resources, health and safety for staff and patrons when 
considering re-opening plans. 
 

10



Board of Trustees 
Mount Prospect Public Library 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/16/2020  Page 2 of 2 

Trustee Bass requested that the Library respond to all communications from the public, 
specifically the recent emails regarding staff furloughs. 
 
Trustees thanked staff for their work continuing to provide library services to the community 
during the emergency closure. 
 

6. Plans for Next Board Meeting 
Trustees agreed to meet next on April 30, 2020 remotely via electronic means for a Special 
Board Meeting. 
 

7. Director and Trustee Reports 
Director Reynders reported that the Village of Mount Prospect has discontinued the 
intergovernmental agreement with the Library for internet services. 
 

8. Public Comment 
Director Reynders read several emailed comments from community members regarding the 
staff furloughs. One community member commented about the library services and staff 
furloughs.  
 

11. Adjournment 
Regular meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Brian Gilligan, Secretary 

 

11



Board of Trustees 
Mount Prospect Public Library 

Special Board Meeting Minutes 04/30/2020 Page 1 of 2

 
Special Board Meeting 

April 30, 2020 7:00 p.m. 
Minutes 

The meeting of the Board of Library Trustees was held without a quorum of Library Trustees physically 
present. The Library Trustees conducted the Board meeting with Library Trustees attending remotely via 
electronic means. This method of conducting the Board meeting was authorized by Executive Order of the 
Governor (COVID-19 Executive Order No. 5, March 16, 2020). Information and instructions on how to 
participate in the meeting and submit public comments was published on the meeting notice, the meeting 

 

1. Call to Order 
Notice of the time of the meeting, agenda, and instructions on how to participate and provide public 
comment, -eight hours prior to the meeting as 
required by law, the meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by Sylvia Haas, President. 

2. Roll Call 
Present: Marie Bass, Michael Duebner, Sylvia Fulk, Terri Gens, Brian Gilligan, Sylvia Haas 
Absent:  None 
Staff Present: Su Reynders 
Visitors: There were approximately 80 visitors and staff on the electronic meeting. 
 

3. COVID-19 Emergency Plan 
4. Director Reynders reviewed the virtual and back office services that the Library continues to provide 

during the emergency closure.  

Trustees discussed the proposed Library re-opening plan that includes six stages:  
Stage 1  Closed to the public 
Stage 2  Closed to the public; some staff resume work on site to prepare for future stages 
Stage 3  Closed to the public; provide pickup and delivery services 
Stage 4  Open to the public with significant restrictions 
Stage 5  Open to the public with moderate restrictions 
Stage 6  Transition to our new normal and modify as needed 

 
Trustees ask for clarification regarding safety protocol in the Library, plans to clean and quarantine 
library materials, and for details regarding the re-opening plan. 
 
The timeline for Stage 3 was discussed, and the Board generally agreed to the staff recommendation 
of: 

a. Staff only in the building in May, with the intent to provide pickup and delivery services no 
later than June 1. 

b. Staff reserve the right to change the plan if new information becomes available. 
 
Director Reynders stated that based on the re-opening timeline, furloughed staff would begin to be 
brought back according to business need throughout late May and June 2020. 
 

5. Plans for Next Board Meeting 
Trustees agreed to meet next on May 21, 2020 remotely via electronic means for the Regular Board 
Meeting. 

12



Board of Trustees 
Mount Prospect Public Library 

Special Board Meeting Minutes 04/30/2020 Page 2 of 2

 
 
 

6. Director and Trustee Reports 
Director Reynders reported that the Village of Mount Prospect has put the Community Connections 
Center expansion on hold. 
 

7. Public Comment 
Director Reynders read two emailed comments from community members regarding the staff 
furloughs. One community member commented about library reopening plans and Board meetings. 
A furloughed employee asked to be contacted about IMRF options. 
 

8. Adjournment 
Special meeting adjourned at 8:11 p.m. 

__________________________________________ 

Brian Gilligan, Secretary 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26


